
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 


REGrO~ 4 

SM0 NUNN 


Al'LANTA FEDERAI~CENTER 


61 FORSYTH STREET 
ATL\NTA GEORGIA JrU03-S960 

CERTIFIED MAIL FEB 16 2011RETUR" RECEIPT REQU.ESTED 

Mr. Timothy Jones 
Tyson Food>. Inc. 
2200 Don Tyson Parkway 
Springdale. Arkansas 72762 

SUBJECT: 	 Tyson Foods. Tnc. 
Consent Agret:ment and Finnl Order 
Docket No. EPCRA·04-2011-200Iib) 

Dear Mr. Jones: 

EncloS\.."t\ please find an executed t'opy of the Crnisent Agreement and Final Ordc:..'I' 
(CAFO) that resolve!> the Emergency Planning and Community Right.to~Know Al.:t of 1986 
(EPCRA) malter (Docket No. EPCRA·04·2011-2001(b» involving Tyson Foods, Inc. The 
CAFO was tiled with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as required by 40 c.P.R. Pcut 22 and became 
t'tlt."Ctive on the date of the filing. 

Also enclosed, please find a copy of the "Notice of Securities anti Exchange CommiSSIon 
Registrants' Duly to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceeding::;:' This document puts you on 
notice ofyour potential duty tu disclose to the Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) any 
environmental enforcement actions taken by the Environmental Protection Agency {EPA). If 
you bavc any questions with regards to the SEC's environmental disclosure requirements. you 
may refer to the contact phone number at thc bottom of the SEC l\oticc. 

If you have any questions, please call Ms. Deanne I.mmt at (404) 562-9291. 

Sincerely. 

Caron B. Falconer, Chief 
EPCRA Enforcement Section 

Enclosures 

InlemelAdd'*Ss :URI.). hrto;JiWWWep<.l.gov 

Rt:cycledlR.mycl/lbte ~ ",,,,100 w~h VlIgelabie Ol8a1'iOO 'pks on ~GCy:ied p,1pjt ;Mi'limum (}O'o/. PO<'!laYltrumer) 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 


IN THE MATTER OF: ) 

) 

Tyson Foods. Inc. ) Docket Number: EPCRA-04-2011-200l{b) :-] 
) 

l 
___..__.. ____l
Re'ipondcnt. 

~ 
, 

: 

'

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL QRPER 

1. Nature of the Action 

1, This is it civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 109 of the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response. Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as, amended. 42 U.S.C. 
§ %09 and Section 325 of the Emergency Planning and Community RighHo-Know Act 
(EPCRA), 42 U.S.C. § 11045 and pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing 
Administratlve Assessment uf Civil Penalties, and the Revocationn erminatiun or Suspension of 
Permits (Consolidated Rules). codified al 40 C.F.R. Part 22. Complainant is the Director of the 
Air. Pesticides and Toxles Management Division, Region 4, United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA). Respondent is Tyson Poods, Inc. 

2. Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement 
pursuant to 40 C.F,R. § 22.18(b) and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations 
described herein without a fonnal hearing. Therefore. without the taking of any evidence or 
testimony, the making of any argument. or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, and in 
accordance with 40 C.P.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) will simultaneously commence and ,,"(mclude this matter, 

11. Prelim~~:tatements 

:\, The authority to take action under Section !{)9 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9609 and 
Sectioll325 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § ! 1045, is vested ill the Administrator of EPA. The 
Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority under CERCLA. and under EPCRA 10 the 
ReglOnal Administrators by EPA Delegations 14-31 and 22-3-A, both dated May II, [994. The 
Regional Administrator, Region 4, has redelcgated to the Director, Air. Pesticides and Toxics 
Management Division. the authority under CERCLA by EPA Region 4 Delegation 14-31 dated 
March 8, 1999, and updaled August 6,2004, and Ihe authority under EPCRA by EPA Region 4 
Delegation 22-3~A. dated November 8. 1994. Pursuant to the~e delegations, the Director of the 
Air, Pesticides and Taxies Management Division has the authority to commence an enforcement 
action as the Complainant in this matter. 

4. Respondent, TY$on Foods, Inc .• does business in the State of Mississippi. 



5. Respondent is a "person" a\ defined iIi Section 329(7) of EPCRA. 42 U.S.c.*1l049(7) and Section 101(21) of CERCLA. 42 U.S.c. § 9601(21). 

6. Respondent hao;; a "facility" as that term is defined by Section 101(9) of CERCLA, 
42 U.S.C. § 9601(9) and by Section 329(4) ofEPCRA. 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4). 

7. Respondent's facility is located at 1785lnlerplex Drive. Vicksbutg, Mississippi 
391H3. 

8. Respondent is an "owner or uperator!r of the facility U5. that term is defined by 
Section IOJ(20)(A) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § %01(20)(A). 

III EPA'::; AllegatiQlls orViolaQQru. 

Violation of SectjQn 103[~tQfCERCLA 

9. Section 102(a) ofCERCLA. 42 V.S.c. § 9602(.). required d,e Administrator of 
EPA to publish a lllit of substances designated as hazardous substances which, when released 
into the environment, may present substantial danger to public health or welfare or the 
environment and to promulgate regulations cSlabHshing the quantity of any hazardous substance 
the release of which wa~ required to be reported under Section 103(a) of CERCLA. 42 U.S.C 
§ 9603(.1). EPA has published and amended such a list, including thc corresponding reportable 
quantities (RQ) for those substances. This list initially published on April 4, 1985 (50 Fed. Reg. 
13474) is periodically amended. 

10. SectionlO3(a) ofCERCLA. 42 U.s.c. § 9603(a), and the regulations found at 
40 CP.R. § 302.6, require a person in charge of a facility or vessel to immediately notify the 
National Response Center (NRC), as soon as he or she has knowledge of a release of a hazardous 
substance from such facility or vessel in an amount equal to, or greater than the RQ. 

11. Respondent was in charge of the facility during the relevant period described 
below. 

12. Ammonia 1s II "hazardous substance" as that tenn is defined by Section 101(14) 
ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9601(14). with an RQ of 100 pounds, as specified in.j() C.F.R. 
§ 302.4. 

13. On June 9, 2010, Respondent had a release of ammonia above the RO at the 
facility. 

14, Respondent violated the notitlcntion requirement" of Section 1 03( a) of Cf..RCLA. 
42 U.S.C. § 9603(.), by failing to immediately notify the NRC as soon". Respondent had 
knowledge of the release of ammonia in an amount equal to or greater than its RQ at 
Respondent's facility and is therefore subject to the assessment of penalties under Section 109 of 
CERCLA.42 U.S.c. § 9609. 
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IS. Pursuant to Section 109 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609, and 40 C.F.R. Part 19, 
EPA may aSSt~,s;; a penalty not to exceed $37,500 for each violation uf Section 103{a) of 
CERCLA, 42 U.s.C. § %03(a), that occurred after January 12, 2009. Each day a violation 
of Section 103 cuntinues constitutes a separate violation .. Civil penalties under Section lO9 of 
CERCLA, 42 tJ"S"c. § 9609, may be as~esl;ed by Administrative Order. 

Yiol~t!9ns of Section 304($1) of EPCRA 

16. Se<tion 304(a) of EPCRA.42 U,S.C. § 1I004(fi) and the regulalion. found at 
40 C.F.R. Part 355. Subpan C. require the owner or operator of a facility at which hazardous 
chemicals are produced, used or stored, w immediately notify the State Emergency Respon.;;;e 
Commission (SERe.) and Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) when there has been a 
release of a CERCLA hazardous subbtance or an EPCRA extremely hazardous hubstance in an 
amount equal to or greater than the reportable quantity. 

17. Re!)pondent was the owner or operator of the facility during the relevant period. 
uesr;.Tibed below. 

18. At all times relevant to this maHer, the facility produced. used. or stored a 
"h",ardou, chemical" as dermed under Section 31 I(e) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11021(e) and 
under 29 C.F.R. § 191O.1200(c). 

19, Ammonia is an "extremely hazardous ~ubstance" a., that term is defined by 
Section 329(3) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § J1049(3), with an RQ of loo pounds, a.< specified in 4() 
C.F.R. Part 355, ApI'S. A & B. 

20. On June 9, 2010, Respondent had a reJcase of ammonia above the RQ at the 
facility. 

21, Respondent violated the nOlineation requirements of Section 304(a) of EPCRA. 
42 U.S.c. §IIOO4(a) by failing to immediately notify the SERe and LEPC a< soon as 
Respondent had knowledge of the release of ammonia in an amount equal to or greater than tbe 
RQ at Respondent's facility, and is therefore subject to the asse5.sment of penalties under Section 
325 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §ll045. 

ViolatJQJlS of Section 304(c. of EPCRa 

22. SectiOIl304(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §1I004(c) and the regulations found at 
40 C.F.R Part 355, Subpart C. require the owner or operator of a facility at which hazardous 
chemicals are produced, used or stored, to provide a written foHow~up emergency notice to the 
SERe and LEPC when there has been a release of a CERCLA hazardous substance or an 
EPCRA extremeJy hazardous substance in an amount equal to or greater than the reportable 
quantity. 
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23. Respondent was the owner or operator of the facility uuring the relevant period, 
described below. 

24. At all times relevant to this matter. the facility produced. used. or stored 
"hazardouschemicaJ," ., defined unuer Section J II(e) of EPCRA, 42 U,$,C. § 11021(e) and 
under 29 C.F.R. § 191O.1200(c). 

25. Ammonia is an "extremely hazardous substance" a<:; that renn is defined hy 
Section 329(3) of EPCR1\., 42 U.S.C. § 11049(3), with.n RQ of 100 pounds, a., specified in 
40 C.F.R. Part 355, Apps. A & B. 

26. On Jtmc 9. 2010, Respondellt bad a release of ammonia above the RQ at the 
facility. 

27. Respondent violated the notification requirements of Section 304(c) of EPCRA. 
42 U$,C § J lOO4(c), by falling to provide a \\-TIuen follow-up emergency notice to the SERe 
and LEPC when there had been a rcle&e of ammonia in an amotult equal to or greater than the 
RQ at Respondent's facility, and is therefore subject tu the assessment of penaities under Sectlon 
325 ofEPeRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045. 

28. PUniuant to Seclion 325(b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § l1045(b), and 40 C.F.R. 
Part 19, EPA may assess a penalty of not more than $37.500 for each violation of Sections 
304(a) nnd (c) nfEPCRA and 42 U.S.c. §§ 11004(a) and (C) that occurreu after January 12, 
2009. Civil penalties under Seclion 325(h) of EPCRA, 42 U.s.c. § 1l005(b), may be "",",ssed 
by Administrative Order. 

IV. Conssnt Agreement 

29. For the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations 
set out abovc but neither admits nor denie!) lhe factual allegations se.t out above. 

30. Respundent waives any righlLu <-'Ontes! [he allegations and its right to appeal the 
propo&cd final order accompanying the Consent Agreement 

31. Respondent consents to the assessment of and agrees 10 pay the civil penalty as 
set forth in this CAPO, 

32. Respondent certifies. that as of the Jate of its execution of this eAFO. it is in 
compHance with aU relevant requtrements of CERCLA and EPCRA. 

33. Compliance with fhe CAPO shall resolve the allegatiom of violations (:ontained 
herein. This CAFO shall not otherwise affect any liability of Respondent to the United States 
other than as expressed herein. Neither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an 
enforcement action against Respondent for VIolation uf any federal or state statute, regulation or 
pennit, to initiate an action for immmcnl and substuntial endangerment, or to pursue criminal 
enforcement. 
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34. Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this 
CAFO. The parties agree that the settlement of this matter is in the public interest and that this 
CAFO is consistent with the appllcablc requirements of CERCLA and EPCRA. 

V. Fin;!! Order 

35. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of FlVE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($5,800) for the CERCLA violation which shall be paid within thirty (30) days of the 
effective date of this CAFO. 

36. Respondent shall pay the CERCLA civil penalty by forwarding a cashier's or 
certified check, payable to "EPA Hazardous Substance Superfund" to one of the following 
addresses: 

BY MAIL BY9VERNIGHT 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency U.S. Bank 
Superfund Payments Attention: Natalie Pearson (314) 418-4087 
Cincinnati Finance Center 1005 Convention Plaza 
P.O. Bo. 979076 Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL 

St. Lnuis, Missouri 63197·9000 St. Louis. Missouri 63101 


The check shall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO. 

37. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of TWENTY THREE THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($23,000) fur the EPCRA violation, which shall be paid within thirty (30) days of 
the effective date of this CAFO. 

38. Respondent shall pay the EPCRA penalty by forwarding a cashier's or certified 
check payable to "'Treasurer, United States of America." to one of the following addresses: 

BY MAIL BY OVERNIGHT 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency U.S. Bonk 
Fines and Penalties Attention: Natalie Pearson (314) 418-4087 
Cincinnati Finance Center 1005 Convention Plaza 
P.O. Box 979077 Mail Station SL~MO·C2GL 
51. Lnuis, Missouri 63197·9000 SI. Louis, Missouri 63101 

Tbe check shall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO. 

39. At the time of payment, Re,<pondent shall send a separate copy of each check, and 
a written statement iliat payment has been made in accordance with this CAFO. to the following 
persons at the follOWing addressC::$: 
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Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S,W, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Deanne D. Grant 
US EPA. Region 4 
Air, Pesticide5 & Toxies Management Division 
61 Forsyth Stree~ S.W, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Sauru!i Wilson 
U.s, EPA. Region 4 
Office of Envirorunental Acc01.mtability 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgi. 30303 

40. For the purposes of state and federal income taxes. Respondent shall not be 
entitled, and agrees not to attempt, to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 
pursuant to this CAFQ, Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall 
constitute u violation of this CAFO. 

41, Pursuantto 31 U.S,C. § 3717, EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on 
debts owed to the United States and a cbarge to cover the cost of processing and handling a 
delinquent claim. Interest wil1 therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the effective 
dale of this CAPO if the penalty is not paid by the date required, Interest will be assessed at the 
rate established by the Secretary ofTreasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, A charge ..ill be 
assessed to cover the costs of debt collection, including processing and handling costs and 
attorney fee" In addition, a penalty charge will be ..sessed on any portion of the debt that 
retl:lains delinquent more than ninety (90) days after payment is due. 

42. Complainant and Respondent .sball bear their own costs and attorney fees in this 
matter, 

43. This CAFe shall be binding upon the Respondent. its SUC(,.'eSSOfS, and assigns, 

44, The following individual is authoril.ed to receive service for EPA in this 
proceeding: 

Caron B. Falconer 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Tox.ics Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S,W, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
(404) 562-8451 
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45. P..ach undersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO certjfies that he or 
she is fully authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally bind that 
party to it. 

VI. Effective Date 

46. The effective date of thi, CAFO shall be the date on which the CAFO i, filed with 
the Regional Hearing Cieri:. 

AGRF.ED AND CONSENTED TO: 

Tyson Foods, Inc. 

By: V';7"" P, }.:\I.e~ (Signature) Date: H ...'1 ... n~ 

Name: j\C~I'- he, \\r.~"".,;)v.'4 (Typed or Printed) 


Title: .llJMk, bl?kf'\r::>!.. ~ (Typed or Printed) 


U.S. Environmental ProtedionAgency 

____ Date:~.0 
crl . Banister, Director 


Air~ Pesticides & Taxies 

Management Division 


Region 4 

I''ff> day of MAPPROVED AND SO ORDERED this 

~~~~ 

Susan B. Schub 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify Ibat I have Ibis day served a true and correct copy of Ibe foregoing 

Consent Agreement and Final Order. In the Malter of Tyson Foods. Inc., Docket No. 

EPCRA-1l4-2011-200\(b), on Ibe parties listed below in the manner indicated: 

Caron B. Falconer (Via EPA', internal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides and Toxies Management 
61 Forsyth Street 
Allanta, GA 30303 

Robert Caplan (Via EPA's internal mail) 
U.S. EPA,Region4 
Office of EoviroIlIJlCntal Accountability 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Mr. Timothy Jones (Certified Mail- Return Re<:eipt Requested) 
Tyson Foods, Inc. 
2200 Don Tyson Parkway 
Springdale, AR 72762 

Patricia A. Bullock, Regional Hearing C 
United States Environmental 
Protection Agency, Region 4 
At.lanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, S,W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-9511 
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EPA ACCOIINTS RECEIVABLE CONTROL NUMBER FORM 

IQ!IE COMPLETE!) BY THE ORIGINATING OFfICE: 
(AItatb a cvpj ottbt tiaal ~ and transmittal kner to Dd'mdm~) 

Tbisformwas urlPaatedb7js_U_U_n_d_i_Wi_l_8_o_n___-;;;;:=::;-_________"" _-;7-~(.::q,+(::.II_ 
(Namr) w.} 

m..____~R_e.~i_o_n __~~~_____________________4~._O_R_C~._O_EA u(404)562~'~04__ 
(Oftia:) \ (T_N_l 

D N....sFJudldaIOrdttIC............ 
USAOCOLLECTS 

~I
LY-J 

...............~-
FMOCOI..I..ECTS PA\'MDlT 

r---l On:ni....»_.Coot _r~ 
C---..l _........ -

D Not_with... 

D ~ ....... c"' ............. ""I"'MI 


c-..·

o 
o 
c 

ThcSlk __A--_________________________________ 

t. DtIItTnd1nc~ 
ED,. • .. bf'iIiUIMIIl Set1iaA
DR,......."J~ R.\( tw'1
i".o. .. lI11....J . ~SUdoa 


w~ I).C • .:M44 


8. AD!l4INJST1tA!lV£ 0JLDg:i: CopW:IoClliiI rma..,itIt il.~ t:QPJ r1lllu: rrwt p;lpl1ttbrt A4IIIiIIitttatiM Onkr $bouIdlMto: 

t. D ilrJ'ttd Procl'lllll otf\ce 
RqiIIItd c~ (L\l)) 
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